
 
AGENDA 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2016 

222 GRAND VALLEY WAY, PARACHUTE, CO 
6:30 P.M. 

The Town of Parachute will make reasonable accommodations for access to Town services, programs, and activities and will make 
special communication arrangements for persons with disabilities. Please call (970) 285-7630, x-104 for assistance. 
   
 
(A) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
 
(B) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
(C) APPROVE AGENDA 
 
 
(D) CONSENT AGENDA: 
 (1) MINUTES FROM THE AUGUST 18, 2016, REGULAR MEETING 
 

(2) EXPENDITURES PAID FROM AUGUST 11, 2016, TO SEPTEMBER 7, 2016. 
 

(3)  LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR RETAIL LIQUOR STORE LICENSE. 
APPLICANT:  Bottlecap Liquors, LLC. 
DBA:   Bottlecap Liquors 
LOCATION:  150 Columbine Ct, Suite A 
  Parachute, CO 81635 

 

(4) LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR A RETAIL 3.2 BEER OFF-PREMISES LICENSE. 
APPLICANT:  Rocky Mountain C Stores Inc 
DBA:   Rocky MTN C Stores 
LOCATION:  201 Columbine Ct 
  Parachute, CO 81635 

 
 
(E) COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS REGARDING ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA  

The Board of Trustees welcomes you and thanks you for your time and concerns. 
If you wish to address the Board of Trustees, this is the time set on the agenda for you to do so. When you are recognized, 

please step to the podium, state your name and address then address the Board. Your comments will be limited to three 
(3) minutes. The Board may not respond to your comments this evening, rather they may take your comments and 

suggestions under advisement and provide direction to the appropriate member of Town Staff for follow-up. Thank you. 
 

PLEASE SILENCE ALL CELL PHONES, PAGERS, AND HAND HELD DEVICES. THANK YOU. 
PLEASE NOTE: THIS MEETING IS BEING AUDIO AND VIDEO RECORDED.  

  
 
(F) DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS: 

(1) Mayor and Board of Trustees ......................................................................................... Mayor and Trustees 
(2) Town Manager Monthly Update ................................................................ Stuart McArthur, Town Manager 
(3) Community Development Report .............................................................. Stuart McArthur, Town Manager 
(4) Public Works Department Monthly Update ............................................. Mark King, Public Works Director 
(5) Police Department Monthly Update ................................................................ Cary Parmenter, Police Chief 

2016-09-09 Page 1 of 116



(6) Town Attorney Update ........................................................................................ Jeffrey Conklin, Town Attorney 
 
 
(G) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF MG LIQUORS, LLC LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION TO ADD A 

RETAIL WAREHOUSE STORAGE PERMIT AND APPROVE MAYOR TO SIGN. 
 

APPLICANT:  Maribel Garcia / MG Liquors, LLC  
APPLYING AS: MG Liquors 
DBA: MG Liquors 
LOCATION:  393 E 2nd Street  

Parachute, CO. 81635 
   

STAFF: LUCY CORDOVA, TOWN CLERK 
 
 
(H)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF RETAIL 

LIQUOR STORE AND APPROVE MAYOR TO SIGN.  
 

APPLICANT:  Tumbleweed Liquors, LLC  
APPLYING AS: Tumbleweed Liquors, LLC / Transferring from Bottlecap Liquors   
DBA:   TUMBLEWEED LIQUORS 
LOCATION:  150 COLUMBINE CT SUITE A 

PARACHUTE, CO. 81635 
   

STAFF: LUCY CORDOVA, TOWN CLERK 
 
 
(I) PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES TO CONSIDER A DEVELOPMENT 

REVIEW APPLICATION FROM ROCKY MOUNTAIN LASER TAG, INC FOR A SPECIAL USE 
REVIEW TO CONSTRUCT AN OUTDOOR RECREATION FACILITY ON A SERVICE COMMERCIAL 
ZONED PROPERTY. 

 

APPLICANT/OWNER: Rocky Mountain Laser Tag, Inc 
225 Callahan Ave 
Parachute, CO 81635  
  

PROJECT NAME: Public hearing for a Special Use Review to construct an outdoor 
recreation facility on a Service Commercial zoned property.  

 

PROJECT LOCATION: 68 Cardinal Way 
 Parachute, CO 81635 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION(S): Section: 12 
Township: 7 
Range: 96 
Lot: 3 A resub of Lot 2A, Sec E 
County of Garfield 

 

STAFF:   MARK CHAIN, TOWN PLANNER  
 
 
(J)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-21 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, 
COLORADO, APPROVING A SPECIAL REVIEW USE PERMIT FOR BRUCE HOGGAN TO 
OPERATE AN OUTDOOR RECREATION FACILITY 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
    JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  

2016-09-09 Page 2 of 116



 
 
(K) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-22 
 

 RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE GRANT APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE 
COLORADO HEALTH FOUNDATION COTTONWOOD PARK CHILDREN’S PLAYGOUND 
PROJECT. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  

 
 
(L)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-23 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, 
COLORADO, AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF A CAPITAL LEASING CORPORATION. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  

 
 
(M) PRESENTATION TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGARDING THE 2017 RECOMMENDED 

BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE. 
 

  STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
      

 
(N) EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF NECESSARY) 

 
 
(O) MOTION TO ADJOURN 

 

 
 

2016-09-09 Page 3 of 116



 
MINUTES 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING AND  

JOINT MEETING WITH 
GARFIELD COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  

AUGUST 18, 2016 
 

Meeting called to order by Mayor Roy B McClung 6:30 pm 
 

(A) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

TRUSTEES PRESENT: John Loschke 
Fred Andersen 
Tim Olk 

Juanita Williams 
Travis Sproles 
Tom Rugaard  

 

MAYOR: Roy McClung 
  

STAFF PRESENT:   Town Manager, Stuart McArthur 
     Admin Assistant, Lauralee Patton  
 Public Works Director, Mark King 
 Police Chief, Cary Parmenter 
  

AUDINCE LIST ATTACHED  
 
 
(B) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
(C) APPROVE AGENDA 
 

MOTION 1: Moved and seconded Loschke / Sproles to approve Agenda with no changes. 
Vocal vote unanimous 

 
 
(D) CONSENT AGENDA: 
 (1) MINUTES FROM THE JULY 21, 2016, REGULAR MEETING 

(2) EXPENDITURES PAID FROM JULY 14, 2016, TO AUGUST 10, 2016 
 

MOTION 2: Moved and seconded Loschke / Olk to approve Consent Agenda  
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote 
 

 
Mike Berry, 135 W 1st Street, Parachute CO 
Mr. Berry spoke regarding irrigation and utility billing issues with his property as well as the Police presence and 
traffic enforcement on 1st Street. 
Dave Devaney, 28 snowberry Pl, Parachute CO 
Judith Hayward, 180 S 2nd Ct, Parachute CO 
Mr. Devaney and Mrs. Hayward spoke regarding the outcome of Grand Valley Days. 

 
 
(F) DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS: 

(1) Mayor and Board of Trustees ......................................................................................... Mayor and Trustees 
Mayor McClung stated that former Mayor of New Castle, Frank Breslin passed away recently. The Town sent a 
tree to planted in his honor at the New Castle Town Hall.  

2016-09-09 Page 4 of 116



(2) Town Manager Monthly Update ................................................................ Stuart McArthur, Town Manager 
Mr. McArthur went over his monthly report. He updated the Board on Sales Tax, that he had been approached by 
land owners about potential annexations, Budget health, and potential drilling by URSA. Informed the Board that 
the potential drilling site is about 600 feet from the new Bus Barn and Alternative High School so many health 
issues were raised by the School District. URSA intends to put a pipeline down Cardinal Way, however that is not 
where the Town would like Cardinal Way to go. Town Manager McArthur requested direction from the Board on 
being able to approach URSA and request contribution to the engineering of that area as they will have to survey it 
all anyway. URSA sent the Town a certified letter asking to waive any kind of additional information as they have 
already given enough. Town Manager McArthur suggested the Town DO NOT Waive any kind of rights as 
continued conversation is still necessary. Given the location of the Pad and future plans for the Town, Mayor 
McClung advised the Town not to give up any sort of rights. Mr. McArthur spoke regarding the location and status 
for ramp access to the Colorado River, appraisal for property, and Capital Leasing Corporation.  Mr. McArthur, 
requested direction from the Board on the creation of a Capital Leasing Corporation to potentially acquire land, 
parks, and buildings. The Town does not expect to use this CLC at the moment, it is intended for the Town to be 
prepared if opportunity presents itself. The Board advised Mr. McArthur that they agreed with the forming of the 
Capital Leasing Corporation. Town Manager informed the Board the Town will have to pay back 36k because 
Cingular Wireless was charging customers for internet access. Mr. McArthur also informed the Board that there 
needed to be some clarification on what type of Marijuana Manufacturing is acceptable and spoke on Consumption 
Clubs.  
(3) Community Development Report .............................................................. Stuart McArthur, Town Manager 
Town Manager McArthur went over the Community Development report. Spoke regarding Grand Valley Days, 
Oktoberfest, Chase Rice, ticket sales, and tubing business.  
(4) Public Works Department Monthly Update ............................................. Mark King, Public Works Director 
Town Manager McArthur went over the Public Works monthly report. He spoke about the new speed signs going 
in on Cardinal Way towards the High School and the continuing issues with water leaks.   
(5) Police Department Monthly Update ................................................................ Cary Parmenter, Police Chief 
Police Chief Parmenter went over his monthly report. He spoke in response to a citizen comment about the Police 
presence and traffic enforcement on First street. He stated that the Police Department was short an officer and most 
of their work was from service calls, however a new officer has been hired and is in training.  

 
 
(G) TOWN OF PARACHUTE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE PLANS PRESENTATION.  
 

 STAFF:     STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER  
 
 
(H) PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE BOARD OF TRUSTEES TO CONSIDER A 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW APPLICATION FROM ZONED PROPERTIES, INC. (ON BEHALF OF 
PARACHUTE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION & ZONED COLORADO PROPERTIES, LLC) FOR 
A SPECIAL REVIEW USE VESTED PROPERTY RIGHTS AND VESTED PROPERTY RIGHTS 
AGREEMENT TO DEVELOP A SINGLE BUILDING SITE FOR A RETAIL MARIJUANA 
CULTIVATION FACILITY AND OTHER POTENTIAL MARIJUANA USES, INCLUDING A 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA-INFUSED PRODUCTS MANUFACTURER, AN OPTIONAL PREMISES 
CULTIVATION OPERATION, A MEDICAL MARIJUANA TESTING FACILITY, A RETAIL 
MARIJUANA STORE, RETAIL MARIJUANA TESTING FACILITY, AND/OR RETAIL MARIJUANA 
PRODUCT MANUFACTURING FACILITY. 

  

APPLICANT/OWNER: Zoned Properties, Inc 
14300 N Northsight Blvd., Suite 208 
Scottsdale, AZ 85260 

PROJECT NAME: Public Hearing for a Special Review Use for a Vested Property 
Rights Agreement, including a Site Specific Development Plan for 
multiple Retail Marijuana Facilities. 
 

PROJECT LOCATION: 110 Diamond Loop 
Parachute, CO  81635 

2016-09-09 Page 5 of 116



 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION(S): Section: 12 
Township: 7 
Range: 96 
Lot: 7 Amended Lots 1-3, 6-10, Block 2 & Lots 1-18 Block 
3 REC #784960 
County of Garfield 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER  
JEFFREY J. CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY 

 

Mayor opened Public Hearing at 8:50pm 
Applicant not present.  
No public comment. 
Public Hearing closed at 8:52pm 
 
MOTION 3: Moved and seconded by Loschke / Rugaard to continue Public Hearing for Zoned Properties, Inc to 
a date certain of November 17, 2016.  
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote  

 
 
(I) PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE BOARD OF TRUSTEES IN 

CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS FOR RETAIL MARIJUANA LICENSES FOR: A RETAIL 
MARIJUANA STORE; A RETAIL MARIJUANA CULTIVATION FACILITY; AND A RETAIL 
MARIJUANA PRODUCTS MANUFACTURING FACILITY FROM PARACHUTE UNLIMITED, LLC.  

 

APPLICANT/OWNER: Parachute Unlimited LLC 
 225 Eagle Drive 9C 

Avon, CO 81620 
DBA:     American Green  

PROJECT NAME: Application for 3 Retail Marijuana Licenses from the Town of 
Parachute; a Retail Marijuana Store, a Retail Marijuana Cultivation 
Facility, and a Retail Marijuana Products Manufacturing Facility  
 

PROJECT LOCATION: 110 Diamond Loop 
Parachute, CO  81635 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION(S): Section: 12 
Township: 7 
Range: 96 
Lot: 7 Amended Lots 1-3, 6-10, Block 2 & Lots 1-18 Block 
3 REC #784960 
County of Garfield 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER  
JEFFREY J. CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY 

 
Mayor opened Public Hearing at 8:52pm 
Applicant not present.  
No public comment. 
Public Hearing closed at 8:54pm 
 

MOTION 4: Moved and seconded by Rugaard / Olk to continue Public Hearing for Parachute Unlimited, LLC, to 
a date certain of November 17, 2016.  
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote  

 
  

(J) PRESENTATION OF AND BOARD CONSIDERATION OF ACCEPTING THE TOWN OF 

2016-09-09 Page 6 of 116



PARACHUTE’S 2015 FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT. 
 

PRESENTER: STEVEN PLUTT, DAZZIO & PLUTT, LLC 
STAFF: D. LYNN STROUD, FINANCE DIRECTOR   

 

MOTION 5: Moved and seconded by Sproles / Williams to accept 2015 Financial Audit Report.  
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote  

 
 

(K) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 706-2016. 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, SUBMITTING TO THE 
REGISTERED ELECTORS OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE AT THE 2016 COORDINATED. 
ELECTION A BALLOT QUESTION WHETHER SECTION 2-8 OF THE TOWN CHARTER SHALL BE 
AMENDED SUCH THAT BOARD OF TRUSTEES TERMS IN OFFICE SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
CONSECUTIVE UNLESS THEY ARE AT LEAST TWO YEARS APART. 

 

STAFF:  STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
   JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  
 

MOTION 6: Moved and seconded by Loschke / Sproles to approve Ordinance No. 706-2016. 
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, SUBMITTING TO THE REGISTERED 
ELECTORS OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE AT THE 2016 COORDINATED. ELECTION A BALLOT 
QUESTION WHETHER SECTION 2-8 OF THE TOWN CHARTER SHALL BE AMENDED SUCH THAT BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES TERMS IN OFFICE SHALL BE CONSIDERED CONSECUTIVE UNLESS THEY ARE AT LEAST 
TWO YEARS APART. 

 
 

(L) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 707-2016 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, SUBMITTING TO THE 
REGISTERED ELECTORS OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE AT THE 2016 COORDINATED 
ELECTION A BALLOT QUESTION WHETHER SECTION 2-4 OF THE TOWN CHARTER SHALL BE 
AMENDED TO REQUIRE THE MAYOR TO VOTE IN SAME MANNER AS OTHER TRUSTEES. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  
 

MOTION 7: Moved and seconded by Loschke / Sproles to deny Ordinance No. 706-2016. 
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, SUBMITTING TO THE REGISTERED 
ELECTORS OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE AT THE 2016 COORDINATED ELECTION A BALLOT 
QUESTION WHETHER SECTION 2-4 OF THE TOWN CHARTER SHALL BE AMENDED TO REQUIRE THE 
MAYOR TO VOTE IN SAME MANNER AS OTHER TRUSTEES. 

 
 
(M) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-17 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, 
ESTABLISHING A REMOTE PARTICIPATION POLICY FOR MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES AND OTHER TOWN COMMISSIONS AND BOARDS. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  
    

MOTION 8: Moved and seconded by Loschke / Olk to approve Resolution 2016-17 
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote  
 

2016-09-09 Page 7 of 116



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, 
ESTABLISHING A REMOTE PARTICIPATION POLICY FOR MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND 
OTHER TOWN COMMISSIONS AND BOARDS. 

 
 
(N)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-18 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE GARFIELD COUNTY 
FEDERAL MINERAL LEASE DISTRICT FOR THE ACQUISITION AND INSTALLATION OF 
DIRECTIONAL AND INFORMATIONAL SIGNAGE TO OFF HIGHWAY VEHICLE AND HIKING 
TRAILS. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
 

MOTION 9: Moved and seconded by Loschke / Rugaard to approve Resolution 2016-18 
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote  
RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE GARFIELD COUNTY FEDERAL 
MINERAL LEASE DISTRICT FOR THE ACQUISITION AND INSTALLATION OF DIRECTIONAL AND 
INFORMATIONAL SIGNAGE TO OFF HIGHWAY VEHICLE AND HIKING TRAILS. 

 
 
(O)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-19 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE GARFIELD COUNTY 
FEDERAL MINERAL LEASE DISTRICT (GCFMLD) FOR THE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF AN 
ACCESS RAMP TO THE COLORADO RIVER FOR OUTDOOR RECREATION PURPOSES AT 
COTTONWOOD PARK. 
 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
 

MOTION 10: Moved and seconded by Sproles / Rugaard to approve Resolution 2016-19 
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote  
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE GARFIELD COUNTY FEDERAL 
MINERAL LEASE DISTRICT (GCFMLD) FOR THE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF AN ACCESS RAMP TO 
THE COLORADO RIVER FOR OUTDOOR RECREATION PURPOSES AT COTTONWOOD PARK. 

 
 

(P)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-20 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE GRANT APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE COLORADO 
STATE DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL AFFAIRS (DOLA) FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A PARK ‘N’ 
RIDE FACILITY.  

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
 

MOTION 11: Moved and seconded by Loschke / Williams to approve Resolution 2016-20 
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote.  
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE GRANT APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE COLORADO STATE 
DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL AFFAIRS (DOLA) FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A PARK ‘N’ RIDE FACILITY.  

 
 

(Q) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH THE 
GARFIELD COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER CONCERNING A COORDINATED 2016 GENERAL 
ELECTION AND APPROVE MAYOR TO SIGN. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
    JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY 
 

2016-09-09 Page 8 of 116



MOTION 12: Moved and seconded by Williams / Sproles to approve IGA with Garfield County Clerk & Recorder 
for coordinated 2016 general Election.   
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote.  

 
 

(R)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE AND 
BETTER CITY TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOMENT AND 
APPROVE MAYOR TO SIGN. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
    JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY 
 

MOTION 13: Moved and seconded by Olk / Rugaard to approve agreement between Town of Parachute and Better 
City and approve Mayor to sign. 
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote. 

 
 

(S) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF LICENSE AGREEMENT BETWEEN WILLIAM R. PATTERSON, 
RODNEY C. POWER, RONALD E. TIPPING, MARIE E. TIPPING AND THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, 
FOR EGRESS ACCESS FROM THE COLORADO RIVER AND APPROVE MAYOR TO SIGN.  

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
    JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY 
 

MOTION 14: Moved and seconded by Loschke / Sproles to approve agreement for egress access from the Colorado 
River and approve Mayor to sign.  
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote.  

 
 

(T) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF NINE (9) PARTY MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
REGARDING GARFIELD COUNTY SENIOR PROGRAMS FOR 2016 AND APPROVE MAYOR TO 
SIGN.  

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
    JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY 
 

Town Administrator McArthur informed the Board that only 10% of Parachute residents use the transportation 
services provided by the Senior Program and 90 % was Battlement Mesa residents. He advised Board that he thought 
it was fair to only pay 10% of the requested amount.  
Board discussion ensued.  
 

MOTION 15: Moved and seconded by Loschke / Sproles to approve Garfield County 9 party MOU with changes. 
The Town of Parachute is to pay $324.00 instead of $3,246.69. 
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote.  

 
 

(U) RATIFICATION OF ACQUISITION OF F350 TWELVE (12) PASSENGER VAN FOR USE WITH RIVER 
RAFTING OPERATIONS. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
 

MOTION 16: Moved and seconded by Rugaard / Olk to approve Ratification of acquisition of F350 12 passenger 
van.  
Motion passed unanimously with a 6-0 vote.  

     
 

(W) MOTION TO ADJOURN 
 

MOTION 17: Moved and seconded by Williams / Sproles to adjourn meeting. 
Vocal vote passed unanimously.  

2016-09-09 Page 9 of 116



 
 
 
 
         _______________________________________ 
                 Roy McClung, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Lucy Cordova, Town Clerk 

2016-09-09 Page 10 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 11 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 12 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 13 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 14 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 15 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 16 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 17 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 18 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 19 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 20 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 21 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 22 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 23 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 24 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 25 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 26 of 116



Derek Wingfield 
 Community Development 

 
 

Integrity   ▪   Respect   ▪   Teamwork   ▪   Pride   ▪   Innovation   ▪   Diversity 

222 GRAND VALLEY WAY ▪ PARACHUTE, CO 81635 ▪ (970) 285-7630 
 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE: September 15, 2016 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Derek Wingfield, Community Development 

SUBJECT: AUGUST 2016 MONTHLY UPDATE 
 
 
 
The river floating adventure has continued into August.  The rules, regulations and execution of the 
program have evolved.  We have been opening the business had some small successes.  The program 
still is a positive program that has great potential. 
 
We did make it successfully through our co-promoted concert with 92.3 The Moose.  We trade services 
for services in attempt to grow our event and theirs without as must expenditure.  The changes from 
last year with their event took it from a money loss to a small profit this year.  Hopefully the changes do 
the same for us.  We did sell a handful of tickets directly at their show but the bigger win has been 
watching the climb in ticket sales based on the increased promotions, both at the event as well as the 
shift of priority from their show to ours. 
 
We did land two more sponsors while we still have a great deal of ground to make up we are moving 
forward.  On a note, Chase Rice was on the Today Show last week promoting the national tour and we 
are the only Colorado date.  This publicity is helping.  We do need volunteer help; Lauralee is running 
point on the organization of volunteers. 
 
A mixed project has evolved the property we use and stage events (the field across the street from 
Cottonwood Park) currently owned by the Parachute Partners.  We levelled it last year and we were able 
to seed it and hopefully we will have grass for Oktoberfest.  This is a step for the event but also a step 
forward with our expanding our central park goal.  
 
I have been working with several businesses and trying to facilitate the expansion of broadband in 
Town.  I will let you know I have received some good news to come next month on this project. 
 

2016-09-09 Page 27 of 116



The school zone signs are programmed working, and I have heard a great deal of praise for the Town 
from doing that.  I also toured our schools and if you haven’t I would recommend checking out the 
upgrades the bond has created for our community. 
We are getting more calls on possible business locations.  These are still steadily cannabis related; 
however it is starting to diversify.  Hopefully we will see some new businesses open and flourish. 
 
I attended an economic development meeting hosted by Paonia and facilitated by Downtown Colorado.  
I am proud to say the Town is moving and working towards growth.  Several people commented on just 
how busy we are and how intuitive some of our projects to grow are. 
 
Again please get with Lauralee about volunteering we could use the help. 
 
 

2016-09-09 Page 28 of 116



  Mark King 
 Public Works Director 

 
 

Integrity   ▪   Respect   ▪   Teamwork   ▪   Pride   ▪   Innovation   ▪   Diversity 

222 GRAND VALLEY WAY ▪ PARACHUTE, CO 81635 ▪ (970) 285-7630 
 

 
 
 
Date:   September 15th, 2016 
To:    Board of Trustees 
From:    Mark King, Public Works Director 
Subject:  September Monthly Report 
 

 
The purpose of this staff report is to provide the Board of Trustees with the Public Works 
updates for the past month. 
 
There was an emergency water line replacement at the Revelle Springs.  We had another leak 
and on further inspection of the water main we found that the main line needed to be 
replaced.  We replaced 500’ of 6” main.  The Revelle springs were off a total of 3 days.  Here are 
some pics of the old and new line.  

2016-09-09 Page 29 of 116



 
We are planning to replace the remaining water line all the way to the golf course.  In addition, 
we are installing 400 feet of 2 inch irrigation line to the Knox property.  
 
All the banners for Oktoberfest have been installed.  They are on Cardinal Way from C.R. 300 
down to the Family Dollar and down 1st street from C.R. 215 to Mama’s Restaurant.  
 
The door for the court room should be delivered in the next week or and will be installed soon 
thereafter.  The Police Department window is in.  Pending building inspections, final finish work 
will be completed in the near future. 
 
 
 
 
 If you have any questions or concerns you can contact me at 970-986-1821. 
 
 

2016-09-09 Page 30 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 31 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 32 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 33 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 34 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 35 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 36 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 37 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 38 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 39 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 40 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 41 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 42 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 43 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 44 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 45 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 46 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 47 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 48 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 49 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 50 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 51 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 52 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 53 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 54 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 55 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 56 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 57 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 58 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 59 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 60 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 61 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 62 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 63 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 64 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 65 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 66 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 67 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 68 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 69 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 70 of 116



Hoggan Special Review Use 1  

STAFF REPORT 
 

Town Of Parachute Board of Trustees Meeting 
Thursday September 15, 2016 

 
Hoggan Special Review Use Application 

 
Report Date – 9/9/2016 

 
PROJECT INFORMATION 

Name of Project: Hoggan Special Review Use 

Type of Request: Special Review Use to allow outdoor Recreation – 
Laser tag & Archery Combat/Team Games 

Name of Applicant: Bruce Hoggan/Rocky Mountain Lasertag, Inc. 
Applicant  Address:  

Contact Information: 970.379.8886 
Owner: Hoggan Handfuls LLC 
Owner Address: 369 Meadow Creek Dr.  Parachute, CO 81635 
Contact Information 970.379.8886 
Site Address & Parcel 
Number: 

68 Cardinal Way : Parcel ID #: 2409-124-43-003 

Surveyor: Bookcliff Survey Services, Inc. 
Surveyor 
address/contact: 

136 E. 3rd St. Rifle, CO  81650 
970.625.1330 

Project Engineer None Identified 
Engineer Contact 
Information: 

NA 

Existing Zoning: Service Commercial 
Proposed Zoning: Same as above 
Surrounding Zoning: North: CDOT Right-of-Way East: Service 

Commercial South: Service Commercial 
West: Service Commercial & CDOT ROW 

Existing Land Use: Vacant 
Proposed Land Use: Outdoor Recreation – Lasertag & Archery Team 

Sports 
Surrounding Land Use: East: professional Business Offices North: CDOT 

right-of-way  West & South: Vacant 
Parcel Size: 1.26 Ac. 
Minimum Lot Size: 6,000 SF 
Property Legal 
Description: 

Lot 3, A Re-subdivision of Lot 2A, Section E, 
Spring Lake Estates, Town of Parachute 

2016-09-09 Page 71 of 116



Hoggan Special Review Use 2  

Project Location: The property is located at 65 Cardinal Way in the Central 
Business District. They vicinity map is provided on the following page. 

 
I. Description of Application: 

Property Description: The property is approximately 1.25 acres in size and is 
currently vacant. Utilities have been provided to the site as part of the Spring Lake 
Estates development/subdivision. There are no unusual physical or environmental 
constraints that staff is aware of. The property has access directly from Cardinal 
Way. 

 
I - 70 and the CDOT right-of-way lie to the north and northwest of the site. Vacant 
property along Cardinal way lies to the west and south of the subject property. 
Medical business offices are developed along the East boundary of the subject 
property. 

 
Description of Application: The applicant is requesting approval of a Special 
Review Use application for an outdoor recreation facility on their 1.25 acre 
property along Cardinal Way. The applicant describes the operation as a Lasertag 
Archery Combat Outdoor Recreation and team games operation. The entire 
property would be used for the activities. 

 
Is important to note that the applicant proposes no permanent improvements at 
this time. Specifically, the site would be an unenclosed, outdoor recreation facility 
with no fencing, no landscaping, nor connection to any public utilities, including 
water and wastewater. No outdoor lighting or parking is proposed. One sign, 8’ x 
4’ is being proposed at this time. 

 
Portable sanitation (Port-a-johns) would be provided along the 
eastern/northeastern boundary of the property. Trash would be stored in a shed. 
Bottled water would be provided. Hours of operation are proposed to be limited. 
The applicant states that the facility would only be open only when H Dentistry is 
closed. The applicant intends to use parking on the adjacent dental offices – which 
the applicant also owns – as a convenience for customers as well as to limit the 
development costs of the site. The applicant lays out his intent for use of the 
property in the application and proposes that no outdoor lighting, fencing, minimal 
landscaping are proposed with initial development.  No irrigation is also intended 
to be provided. Schematic layout is hand-drawn on a subdivision diagram and 
shows a “tire zone”, a “centerfield area”, “pallet field” and other obstacles/areas 
for the lasertag and archery games etc. This is included in your packet. 

 
The applicant directly addresses lack of building and utility infrastructure. 
Specifically, the applicant has a short-term goal of building a facility in a cost 

2016-09-09 Page 72 of 116



Hoggan Special Review Use 3  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Town Hall 

 

 

 

 

 

Site 

Vicinity Map 

2016-09-09 Page 73 of 116



Hoggan Special Review Use 4  

efficient manner, attracting customers and growing the business gradually as 
financing permits. The long-term goal would involve construction of a large indoor 
arena for eventual year-round gaming. 

 
Some Issues related to Land Use. 

 

Planning Staff supports the idea of the gradual and organic growing of the business 
and not spending inordinate amounts of money prior to obtaining a solid and 
sustainable customer base. However, staff does have some concerns with a 
temporary facility as proposed. The first is the fact that this land use is proposed 
for what is the future Central Business District for the Town. It is an excellent idea 
to attract people from the area to the Central Business District (CBD). But as the 
town grows and hopefully successful businesses locate to the area, it is important 
that such a use “fits in”. Often times, outdoor recreation facilities which are utilized 
over a significant part of the year are located in areas further from a Downtown 
Core. Second, staff wants to ensure that there are no problems with sanitation 
anywhere in the town and specifically within the CBD. If temporary facilities are 
approved, there needs to be a specific maintenance plan to ensure that there is 
adequate water and that sanitary facilities are emptied and cleaned on a regular 
basis. There also may be concerns from some staff that vandalism could occur 
such as port-a-johns being tipped over. It should be noted that the Municipal Code 
does allowed shared parking arrangements. Parking should be analyzed to make 
sure that parking is taken care of by the user. Finally, occasionally outdoor 
recreation facilities are screened. Generally, parks are open to view and this 
obviously makes sense. A Lasertag and Archery complex are noted for having 
labyrinths and designed hiding places so some type of screening is something that 
should be considered. The Fire District and First responders may also want to think 
about the nature of the facility to ensure that they are generally safe for the user 
and there is relatively quick access for emergency services. 

 
Zoning and Special Review Use 

 

The subject property is located in the Service Commercial Zone District. The 
proposed use is for Lasertag and Archery Combat/team games. The applicant 
notes this as “Outdoor Recreation”. Eventually, applicant proposes to have some 
kind of arena to enclose a recreation use. Planning Staff looks at the outdoor 
recreation component as being temporary in nature. Please note that “outdoor 
recreation” is not a permitted use in the Service Commercial zone district. 
However, public recreation facilities are allowed as a “permitted use” and 
events/indoor recreation centers are listed as “special review uses”. Therefore, 
there could be some question on what is the appropriate land use review category. 

 
Section 15.03.175 of the Municipal Code provide some guidance. The section 
state that if use is not listed it may be allowed by approval of a special review use 

2016-09-09 Page 74 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 75 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 76 of 116



Hoggan Special Review Use 7  

to surrounding land uses and its impacts, compatibility with the neighborhood and 
conformance with the Parachute Plan. Special review uses may be permitted upon 
approval by the Board of Trustees as provided in the Parachute Municipal Code. 
The Board may require a Development Improvements Agreement as a condition 
of approval of a special review use (15.03.165 D). 

 
IV. Applicable Regulations: 

 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan - The application should be in general 
conformance with the Parachute Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Special Review Uses 

 
 

15.05.206 Review criteria and Planning Commission recommendation (to Board of 
Trustees). 

 

A. Review Criteria. The Planning Commission shall consider all the evidence presented 
by the applicant and other interested parties, comments of review agencies, 
recommendations of the Town Manager, and comments from the public. At a minimum, 
the Planning Commission shall also consider the following criteria: 

 
1. Conformance of the proposal with the Town of Parachute Municipal Code; 
 
2. The compatibility of the proposal with the character of the surrounding area 
including, but not limited to, the architectural character of the neighborhood; 
 
3. The desirability for the proposed use in the specific area of the Town; 
 
4. The potential for adverse environmental effects that might result from the 
proposed use; 
 
5. Compatibility of the proposed use and the site (or subdivision) plan with the 
Parachute Plan; and 
 
6. Conformance of any plan with the requirements of the Town of Parachute 
public works improvements manual. 

 
V. Special Review Use Staff Comments: 

 

Conformance with the Town of Parachute Comprehensive Plan. 
A master plan is not zoning. The plan represents the general manner categories 
and patterns of land uses, public facilities, transportation and other elements as 
desired by the Town as growth takes place in the future. Zoning establishes 
definite standards for land use, structures and other appropriate regulations. 

 
The subject property is located in the area noted as “Central Business District”. 
Below is an excerpt from the 2015 Comprehensive Plan which describes the 
intent of the Central Business District. 
 2016-09-09 Page 77 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 78 of 116



Hoggan Special Review Use 9  

 

VI. Special Review Use: Comment and Review of Criteria 
 

The following section will analyze and give point by point comments on the 
Criteria used to evaluate a Special Review Use as identified in Section 15.05.206 
of the cat municipal Code. 

 
1. Conformance of the proposal with the Town of Parachute Municipal Code 

 

Staff Comment: the proposed use will be required to conform to all applicable 
provisions in the Parachute Municipal Code. This includes conformance to all of the 
requirements of the Municipal Code, building/fire codes, electric codes and other 
applicable regulations. Of course, most Municipal Code provisions relate to 
buildings of structures, hooking into municipal utilities such as water, wastewater 
as well as those provided by other utility providers such as gas and electric, etc. 
Many Code provisions also relate to the provision of parking. As noted previously, 
the applicant proposes as a short-term plan to not provide a structure, not hook into 
municipal or other utilities and to share parking infrastructure on an adjoining 
property which is also owned by the applicant. Because of this unusual proposal 
as well as the short-term goal of building a business and then providing a 
building and other infrastructure in the future, Planning Staff is 
recommending that as part of the approval applicant provide a Site Plan as 
provided in town code (section 15.06.104 and 15.07.112). Following the Site 
Plan Review Procedures will allow the Town Manager, staff and review 
agencies/special districts to review in detail all use on the subject property 
so that all users are safe, it fits in with the surrounding land uses and 
neighborhood in an appropriate manner and furthers the goals of the 
Comprehensive plan and the Central Business District. Staff is also at this 
time recommending that the applicant enter into a Development 
Improvements Agreement if the Board wishes to approve the Special Review 
Use so that all issues can be properly addressed. 

 
The following items are exerpts from the land use code that are applicable to the 
subject property and must be complied with as part of the site plan review 
process. Comments will be made as appropriate. 

 
Section 15.03.197 General Requirements for all Business, Commercial and 
Industrial Uses 

 

B. All outdoor storage, trash receptacles and activities associated with permitted uses shall be 
entirely enclosed by building walls or by a solid masonry wall not less than seven feet (7') in 
height located at the front setback line. On all other property lines said uses shall be enclosed 
by buildings, solid masonry walls, vine covered chain-link fences, or uniformly compact 
evergreen hedges, continuously maintained and not less than seven feet (7') in height. 

 
C. All applicable environmental standards of the state of Colorado or the United States 
government shall be complied with at all times. 

 
G. In all front yards, the equivalent of one (1) tree per thirty (30) lineal feet of interior 

2016-09-09 Page 79 of 116



Hoggan Special Review Use 10  

property line shall be provided; in all rear and side yards 
 

H. All yards between the public street curbing and the property line are to be 
professionally landscaped and maintained with drought tolerant landscaping, 
incorporating native shrubs and trees. 

 
M. Security lighting fixtures are not to project above the fascia or parapet of the building 
and are to be shielded or recessed in the building walls to provide cut-off at the property 
line. 

 
N. The storage of combustible materials shall be not less than twenty feet (20') from any 
interior lot line, and a roadway shall be provided, graded, surfaced, and maintained from 
the street to the rear of the property to permit free access of fire trucks at any time. 

 
O. No materials or wastes shall be deposited upon a subject lot in such form or manner 
that they may be transferred off the lot by natural causes or forces. All waste materials 
shall be stored in an enclosed area and shall be accessible to service vehicles. 

 
P. Wastes which might cause fumes or dust or which constitute a fire hazard or which 
may be edible by or otherwise be attractive to rodents or insects shall be stored only in 
closed containers in required enclosures. 

 
Q. Trash enclosure location shall be subject to the approval of the Building and Planning 
Department. Trash enclosure shall be of masonry construction or approved alternate 
material. 

 
15.03.199 Building Exterior Design Standards 

 

C. Standards for Exterior Building Design and Construction Applicable in All Areas of the 
Town of Parachute. Except as otherwise provided herein, any land surface and any work 
or improvements upon any real property within the Town of Parachute shall be erected, 
removed, restored, altered or demolished in such a manner so as to maintain, protect and 
complement the historic character and qualities of buildings, structures and properties. 

 
15.07.112 Site plan review. 

 
Prior to the issuance of a building permit for all uses except single-family residences, a 
site plan must be submitted as required by PMC 15.01.114. In addition to the building 
permit requirements, the following information shall be submitted for a parking lot or 
parking area: 

 
F. Grading, drainage, 

 
K. Irrigation plan for the landscaped areas; and 

 
L. Other pertinent data. 

 
The Town Manager shall make the initial determination of whether or not the plans and 
specifications comply with the provisions of this chapter. Appeals from the Town 
Manager’s decision may be taken by any aggrieved party to the Board of Adjustment 
within fourteen (14) days after such decision. 

 
2016-09-09 Page 80 of 116

http://www.codepublishing.com/CO/Parachute/%23!/15.01.html#15.01.114


Hoggan Special Review Use 11  

Staff Comment (for all above standards). As noted previously, this use is meant to be 
a temporary use and a professional site planner/designer and/or engineer has not been 
engaged. That is understandable given the present economy. Planning Staff believes that 
all of the above standards and even others can be met by the Applicant. Allowing more 
detail to be provided at the Site Plan stage and a give-and-take between the applicant and 
the Town Administrator/staff/review agencies will allow all items to be dealt with on a 
professional basis and minimize any adverse impacts. Also, if the Applicant wishes to 
enhance certain portions of the application either in advance of approval or after initiation 
of activities, (such as security lighting, hooking up to municipal water, etc.), the Site Plan 
process as well of conditions of approval and a Development 
 
Improvements Agreement will help ensure that the neighborhood and surrounding 
properties are not adversely affected. 

 
15.07.106 Parking Requirements for Uses Not Listed. For specific use is not listed in 
section 15.07.102 above, the Town Administrator shall determine the Appropriate Number 
of parking Spaces required based upon the type of activity, intensity and number of 
employees in similarity to listed uses. 

 
Staff Comment. There are no listed parking requirements for a use entitled “lasertag and 
Archery” etc. Planning Staff will work with the Town Administrator to ensure that the 
parking proposed on the H Dentistry property works for the proposed use or prescribe 
conditions in in the event that problems arise. 

 
2. The compatibility of the proposal with the character of the surrounding area 
including, but not limited to, the architectural character of the neighborhood; 

 

Staff Comment. Much of the property adjacent to the proposed use is vacant or is CDOT 
right-of-way. There are office and professional business space to the east of the subject 
site. The Central Business District is undergoing change and hopefully more 
development is coming in the near future. These property should not be adversely 
impacted by the proposed use. 

 
3. The desirability for the proposed use in the specific area of the Town; 

 

Staff Comment: the recreational nature of this proposed use can help link the 
Central Business District to the propose, future recreational uses of the Colorado 
River and nearby lakes as noted in the Comprehensive Plan. In addition, it is Staff’s 
opinion that bringing in more users to the area they can only help enhance the 
economic vitality of this area. Proper mitigation will have to be used in order to 
ensure compatibility with the local neighborhood. Proper screening by a fence that 
meets all code requirements will go a long way to ensuring that there is adequate 
separation between uses on the property and adjacent sites, nuisances do not spill 
over onto adjacent properties or the neighborhood, that trespassing does not occur 
and that vandalism (such as tipping over port port-a-johns) does not take place 

 
4. The potential for adverse environmental effects that might result from the 

proposed use; 
 

Staff Comment: The applicant does not provide any engineering details or other 
appropriate analyses to prove that adverse environmental impacts will not occur. 

2016-09-09 Page 81 of 116



Hoggan Special Review Use 12  

It is staff’s opinion that adverse environmental effects are a low risk to the Town. 
There is the possibility of wastewater/sewage spills is something happens to the 
portable waste systems on site. The use of toxic chemicals is not foreseen at this 
time. Compliance with applicable Town another regulations to avoid adverse 
environmental effects will require more discussion at the Site Plan review process. 
Compatibility of the proposed use and the site (or subdivision) plan with the 
Parachute Plan; and 

 

Staff Comment: Previously discussed. 
 

5. Conformance of any plan with the requirements of the Town of Parachute 
public works improvements manual. 

 

Staff Comment: No site engineering or engineering plan has been submitted. 
However, the temporary nature of the use and lack of physical development 
indicates that long-term risk to Town infrastructure is low. The town does have 
the ability to answer more information during the Site Plan review process. 

 
VII. Review Agency Comments 

 
Public Works – No comments received. 

Town Engineer – No comments received. 

Police Department - No concerns identified. 

Fire Department - See Attached Letter. (Fencing requested). 

2016-09-09 Page 82 of 116



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hoggan Special Review Use 14 
2016-09-09 Page 83 of 116



Hoggan Special Review Use 14  

VIII. Staff Recommendation 
 

Staff recommends approval of the Hoggan Special Review Use application with 
the following conditions: 

 
1. The Special Review Use Permit shall be approved for a period of up to two 

years. At the end of that time period, there shall be a Public Meeting at which 
time the operations of the Hoggan Lasertag and Archery Recreation Facility 
will be reviewed. The Board of Trustees, in their discretion may approve a 
continuation of the operation of the Facility “as is”, may recommend certain 
changes in the operational schedule or nature of the physical facility itself, or 
require that a structure or enclosed arena be constructed to house the Facility. 
The Board of Trustees may require at that time that the Facility also be hooked 
up to Town utilities and that parking and other improvements such as 
additional landscaping be constructed on site. 

 
2. The Town Manager or his designee shall review the operation of the Facility at 

the end of one year from the opening of the Facility. At that time, any issues 
related to complaints from the public, suggestions from Town Staff, 
Department Heads or any Special District may be considered in order to 
enhance the operation of the Facility and allow it to function at an appropriate 
level as part of the Central Business District. 

 
3. A seven (7) ft. high screened fence that meets Parachute Municipal Code 

standards shall enclose the property. Frontage landscaping shall be installed. 
 

The fence may be constructed leaving the side facing the highway (I-70) open.  
The open fencing will be reviewed in three (3) months.  If it is deemed to be 
unsafe or otherwise unacceptable, the Town may require the seven (7) foot 
high screened fence to be constructed to enclose the entire property. 

 
4. As required by the Parachute Municipal Code, the applicant shall submit a 

detailed site plan subject to review and conformance with Sections 15.07.112 
and 15.06.104 of the Municipal Code. Special consideration shall be focused 
on trash storage area and portable sanitation facilities areas. Relationship to 
the Shared Parking Facility with H Dentistry and signage/outdoor lighting (if 
proposed) shall also be considered. 

 
5. The Applicant shall enter into a Development Improvements Agreement with 

the Town as per Section 15.03.165 D of the Parachute Municipal Code. The 
Development Agreement may include provisions for timely review and 
operation of the Facility per the approved Special Review Use permit including 
hours of operation, issues related to an outdoor recreational use without 
permanent Municipal Water and Wastewater Facilities, and use of the Shared 
Parking on an adjacent lot. 

 
6. All use of the site shall conform to with adopted fire codes applicable to the Town 

of Parachute and recommendations on emergency access and other appropriate 
safety measures as suggested by the Grand Valley Fire Protection District and the 

2016-09-09 Page 84 of 116



Hoggan Special Review Use 15  

Town of Parachute Police Department. 
 

7. The Record of Decision by the Parachute Board of Trustees for the Hogan Special 
Review Use shall be recorded in the real state records of the Garfield County Clerk 
and Recorder. 

 
8. All representations made in the applicant’s written material or verbally as reflected 

in the minutes of the public meetings or hearings where the Application was 
presented to the Commission and/or Board of Trustees are considered part of the 
application and binding on the applicant. 

 
9. Applicant shall reimburse the town for any and all fees, including consulting costs, 

incurred in the review of the Application. 
 
 

Recommended Board of Trustees Motion: 
 

The recommended motion on the special review use application is: 
 

I move to approve the Hoggan Application for a Special Review Use Permit for an 
Outdoor Lasertag and Archery Team Facility in the Service Commercial Zone District 
with the staff recommended conditions.  

2016-09-09 Page 85 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 86 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 87 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 88 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 89 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 90 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 91 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 92 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 93 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 94 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 95 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 96 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 97 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 98 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 99 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 100 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 101 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 102 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 103 of 116



2016-09-09 Page 104 of 116



 
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-21 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, 
COLORADO, APPROVING A SPECIAL REVIEW USE PERMIT FOR BRUCE 
HOGGAN TO OPERATE AN OUTDOOR RECREATION FACILITY 

 
WHEREAS, Bruce Hoggan dba Rocky Mountain Lasertag, Inc. (the “Applicant”) wishes 

to operate an outdoor recreation facility (that includes lasertage and archery team sports) on 
property located at 65 Cardinal Way, Parachute, CO 81635, identified as Garfield County Parcel 
No. 2409-124-43-003 (the “Property”);  

 
WHEREAS, the Property is owned by Hoggan Handfuls, LLC, an entity controlled by the 

Applicant;  
 
WHEREAS, the Property is zoned Service Commercial (SC);  

 
WHEREAS, SC zoning allows for an outdoor recreation facility as a special review use 

and, therefore, Applicant has applied for a special review use permit for such use on the Property, 
known as the Hoggan Lasertag and Archery Recreation Facility (the “Application”);  

 
WHEREAS, Section 15.05 of the Parachute Municipal Code (the “Code”) allows for 

special review use to be approved as follows:   
 

Uses designated as special review uses are contingent uses which may or 
may not be appropriate in a particular location depending on the nature of 
the proposed use, its relationship to surrounding land uses and its impact on 
traffic capacities, potential environmental effects, compatibility with the 
neighborhood, and conformance with the Parachute Plan.  It is the intent of 
these Regulations to provide a review of special review uses so that the 
community is assured that any proposed special review uses are suitable for 
the proposed location and are compatible with the surrounding land uses. 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the Town of Parachute reviewed the 

Application and has recommended approval, subject to the conditions set forth in Exhibit A which 
is incorporated herein (the “Conditions”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has reviewed the Applicant’s Application for a Special 

Review Use Permit to allow for an outdoor recreation facility to be located on the Property and 
finds that it conforms with the terms and conditions of Chapter 15.05 of the Code subject to the 
subject to Conditions, which are incorporated herein, and, therefore, wishes to approve such 
permit. 
 

2016-09-09 Page 105 of 116



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT: 

 
 Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.   
 

Section 2. The Board hereby approves Applicant’s Application for a special review 
use permit for an outdoor recreation facility on the Property subject to the Conditions set forth in 
Exhibit A and authorizes the Town Manager to negotiate and approve a cash payment in lieu of 
land dedication pursuant to Section 15.01.111 of the Code.  

 
Section 3. This Resolution may be recorded in the public records of Garfield County, 

Colorado. 
 

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED by a vote of  __  to      of 
the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, Colorado at a regular meeting held at Town Hall 
in the Town of Parachute, Colorado, on the 15th day of September, 2016 and approved by the 
Mayor on the 15th day of September, 2016. 
    

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

        
 

By _____________________________ 
Roy B. McClung, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Town Clerk  

 
  

2016-09-09 Page 106 of 116



EXHIBIT A - CONDITIONS 
 

 
1. The Special Review Use Permit shall be approved for a period of up to two years. 

At the end of that time period, there shall be a Public Meeting at which time the 
operations of the Hoggan Lasertag and Archery Recreation Facility will be reviewed. 
The Board of Trustees, in their discretion may approve a continuation of the 
operation of the Facility “as is”, may recommend certain changes in the operational 
schedule or nature of the physical facility itself, or require that a structure or enclosed 
arena be constructed to house the Facility. The Board of Trustees may require at that 
time that the Facility also be hooked up to Town utilities and that parking and other 
improvements such as additional landscaping be constructed on site. 

 
2. The Town Manager or his designee shall review the operation of the Facility at the 

end of one year from the opening of the Facility. At that time, any issues related to 
complaints from the public, suggestions from Town Staff, Department Heads or any 
Special District may be considered in order to enhance the operation of the Facility 
and allow it to function at an appropriate level as part of the Central Business 
District. 

 
3. A seven (7) ft. high screened fence that meets Parachute Municipal Code standards 

shall enclose the property. Frontage landscaping shall be installed. 
 
The fence may be constructed leaving the side facing the highway (I-70) open.  The 
open fencing will be reviewed in three (3) months.  If it is deemed to be unsafe or 
otherwise unacceptable, the Town may require the seven (7) foot high screened 
fence to be constructed to enclose the entire property. 

 
4. As required by the Parachute Municipal Code, the applicant shall submit a detailed 

site plan subject to review and conformance with Sections 15.07.112 and 15.06.104 
of the Municipal Code. Special consideration shall be focused on trash storage area 
and portable sanitation facilities areas. Relationship to the Shared Parking Facility 
with H Dentistry and signage/outdoor lighting (if proposed) shall also be considered. 

 
5. The Applicant shall enter into a Development Improvements Agreement with the 

Town as per Section 15.03.165 D of the Parachute Municipal Code. The 
Development Agreement may include provisions for timely review and operation of 
the Facility per the approved Special Review Use permit including hours of 
operation, issues related to an outdoor recreational use without permanent Municipal 
Water and Wastewater Facilities, and use of the Shared Parking on an adjacent lot. 

 
6. All use of the site shall conform to with adopted fire codes applicable to the Town of 

2016-09-09 Page 107 of 116



Parachute and recommendations on emergency access and other appropriate safety 
measures as suggested by the Grand Valley Fire Protection District and the Town of 
Parachute Police Department. 

 
7. The Record of Decision by the Parachute Board of Trustees for the Hogan Special Review 

Use shall be recorded in the real state records of the Garfield County Clerk and Recorder. 
 

8. All representations made in the applicant’s written material or verbally as reflected in the 
minutes of the public meetings or hearings where the Application was presented to the 
Commission and/or Board of Trustees are considered part of the application and binding 
on the applicant. 

 
9. Applicant shall reimburse the town for any and all fees, including consulting costs, 

incurred in the review of the Application. 
 
 

 

2016-09-09 Page 108 of 116



TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-22 

 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE GRANT APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE 
COLORADO HEALTH FOUNDATION COTTONWOOD PARK CHILDREN’S PLAYGOUND 

PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Parachute is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, and 
therefore an eligible applicant for a grant awarded by the Colorado Health Foundation (CHF); and . 

WHEREAS, the Town of Parachute has submitted a grant application for the Cottonwood Park 
Children’s Playground Project requesting a total award of up to $100,000; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Parachute supports the completion of the project if a grant is awarded 
by the Colorado Health Foundation.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT:  

Section 1.  The above recitals are hereby incorporated as findings by the Board of Trustees.  
Section 2.  The Board of Trustees strongly supports the grant application submitted by the 

Town of Parachute and will appropriate matching funds for a grant with the Colorado Health Foundation.  
Section 3. If the grant is awarded, the Board of Trustees strongly supports the completion of 

the project.  
Section 4.  The Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute authorizes the expenditure of funds 

necessary to meet the terms and obligations of any grant awarded pursuant to a grant agreement with the 
CHF.  

Section 5.  If a grant is awarded, the Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the Town Manager 
to sign a Grant Agreement with the Colorado Health Foundation.  
INTRODUCED, READ, PASSED, AND ADOPTED as provided by law, by a vote of _____ to _____ 
of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, Colorado, at a regular meeting held at the Town of 
Parachute, Colorado, on the 15th day of September 2016, and approved by the Mayor or the 15th day of 
September 2016. 
 
  BOARD OF TRUSTESS OF THE 
  TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 
 
 
  By:  ________________________________ 
          Roy B. McClung 
  Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lucy Cordova 
Town Clerk 

2016-09-09 Page 109 of 116



 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-23 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, 

COLORADO, AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF A CAPITAL LEASING 

CORPORATION. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Parachute, Colorado is a home-rule municipality organized 

under the authority of Article XX of the Constitution of the State of Colorado and the Charter of 

the Town of Parachute; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town now, or in the future may, own certain capital assets appropriate 

for lease within or without the Town for the improvement and betterment of the Town, its 

infrastructure, and its local business and residential community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town now, or in the future may, desire to make capital asset acquisitions 

requiring lease purchase financing that may be accomplished through the creation of a nonprofit 

corporation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees for the Town of Parachute desires to create a capital 

leasing corporation to facilitate such lease purchase financings and to maintain control of capital 

assets for the betterment of the Town now and in the future; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees intends to authorize the formation of such a corporation 

for the purposes set forth above and for such other purposes as shall be deemed reasonable and 

necessary. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT: 

 

 Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.   

 

Section 2. The Parachute Board of Trustees hereby approves the formation of the 

Parachute Capital Leasing Corporation consistent with the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 

attached hereto as Exhibits A and B, respectively. 

 

Section 3. The Town Manager is hereby authorized to take all actions necessary to the 

formation of the Parachute Capital Leasing Corporation as a nonprofit corporation existing under 

the laws of the State of Colorado and of the United States of America, as the same may be amended 

from time to time. 

 

Section 4. The Town Mayor is hereby authorized to execute and deliver any and all 

documents reasonably necessary to accomplish the same.  

 

2016-09-09 Page 110 of 116



Town of Parachute, Colorado 

Resolution No. 2016-23 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Section 5. The Town Manager shall be designated to act as the incorporator of the 

Parachute Capital Leasing Corporation with the Colorado Secretary of State. 

 

Section 6. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon approval by the Town 

Board.   

 

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED by a vote of  __  to      of 

the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, Colorado at a regular meeting held at Town Hall 

in the Town of Parachute, Colorado, on the ____ day of ______________, 2016 and approved by 

the Mayor on the ____ day of ______________, 2016. 

    

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  

TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

        

 

By _____________________________ 

Roy B. McClung, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Town Clerk  

2016-09-09 Page 111 of 116



ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

PARACHUTE CAPITAL LEASING CORPORATION,

A COLORADO NONPROFIT CORPORATION

The PARACHUTE CAPITAL LEASING CORPORATION (“P-CLC” or 

“Corporation”) is organized under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Colorado concerning 

nonprofit corporations and shall have and may exercise all of the rights, powers, privileges, and 

immunities granted to such corporations by those laws, as amended from time to time, subject to 

the restrictions and limitations contained in these Articles of Incorporation. The Corporation is 

organized and operated for charitable and civic purposes as more specifically described in these 

Articles of Incorporation.

ESTABLISHMENT

1.1 NAME: Parachute Capital Leasing Corporation

1.2 FORM: Colorado Nonprofit Corporation

1.3 DURATION: Perpetual

1.4 ADDRESS: 222 Grand Valley Way

P.O. Box 100

Parachute, CO 81635

PURPOSE AND POWERS

2.1 To purchase, lease, or otherwise acquire real estate and to construct, install, or 

acquire and place thereon any and all public improvements, within or without the boundaries of 

the Town of Parachute, Colorado (“Parachute” or the “Town”), and to purchase, lease, or otherwise 

acquire personal property of any kind, for the use and benefit of the Town, and to lease, convey, 

sell, transfer, or otherwise make available such real estate, improvements, and personal property 

to the Town for the benefit of the Town and its residents.

2.2 To operate, maintain, repair, and improve, or to cause to be operated, maintained, 

repaired, and improved, any and all real property and improvements, as well as personal property, 

acquired, constructed, or installed by the Corporation.

2.3 Upon the prior resolution and approval of a majority of the Board of Trustees of 

the Town of Parachute (the “Town Board”), to borrow money and to become indebted and to 

execute and deliver bonds, notes, or debentures to evidence such indebtedness, for the purpose of 

acquiring such real or personal property, constructing, designing, installing, and acquiring such 

improvements, and for such other purpose or purposes as may be necessary to accomplish the 

lawful objectives of the Corporation. Such indebtedness may be either unsecured or secured by 

2016-09-09 Page 112 of 116



2

any mortgage, trust deed, or other lien upon the property to be acquired or any other rights or 

interests of the Corporation.

2.4 To conduct the business of the Corporation in such a manner so that ultimately title 

and ownership of the real property, personal property, and improvements purchased, acquired, or 

financed by the Corporation will be vested in the Town, except as may be otherwise be authorized 

by resolution of the Town Board

2.5 To exercise all powers, privileges, and rights necessary or advisable to carry out the 

objectives and purposes for which the Corporation is formed, and the Board of Directors hereby 

claims for this Corporation all the benefits, privileges, rights, and powers created, extended or 

conferred by the provisions of all applicable laws of the State of Colorado pertaining to nonprofit

corporations, and any amendments or supplements thereto and such powers and authority as may 

be granted by any subsequent legislation relating to nonprofit corporations.

2.6 To make available for the use and benefit of the Town, the proceeds of any 

indebtedness of the Corporation under such terms and conditions as may be approved by the 

Corporation.

2.7 To finance any other public undertakings or public activities authorized by 

resolution of the Town Board.

2.8 The Corporation is not organized, nor shall it be operated, for pecuniary gain or 

profit, and it does not contemplate the distribution of gains, profits, or dividends to any private 

person or entity.

2.9 The property, assets, profits, and net income of the Corporation are dedicated 

irrevocably to the purposes set forth in this Article, and no part of the profits or net income of the 

Corporation shall ever inure to the benefit of any director, trustee, officer, or member thereof or to 

the benefit of any private person or entity. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.1 The property, affairs, and business of the Corporation shall be managed and 

conducted by the Board of Directors.  There shall be no members of the Corporation except the 

directors thereof. The Board of Directors shall have and exercise all the powers of the Corporation 

and shall make, subject to any limitations contained in these Articles of Incorporation and the 

Bylaws adopted hereunder, all bylaws, rules, and regulations for the governing of the Corporation 

and the management of its affairs. The Board of Directors may repeal, alter, or amend, subject to 

any limitations contained in these Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws adopted hereunder, such 

bylaws, rules, regulations as the Directors deem proper for the management of the affairs of the 

Corporation.

3.2 The number of directors constituting the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall 

initially be five (5) members, each of whom shall be appointed by the Town Board and serve as a 

director for the term prescribed in the Bylaws of the Corporation and until his or her successor is 

appointed and qualified, unless he or she resigns or is removed in accordance with the Bylaws. 

2016-09-09 Page 113 of 116



3

Two (2) members of the Town Board of Trustees shall serve as members of the Board of Directors 

and shall be appointed by majority vote of the Town Board. Three (3) members of the Board of 

Directors shall be appointed by majority vote of the Town Board from the persons who hold the 

following Town offices: the Town Manager, the Town Treasurer or Finance Director, and the 

Public Works Director or Community Development Director.

3.3 The number and membership of the Directors may be changed as provided in the 

Bylaws of the Corporation following initial appointments. The Directors shall be appointed in the 

manner provided in the Bylaws of the Corporation. The Town Board shall, by majority vote, have 

the power and ability to remove any Director.

PROPRIETARY INTEREST OF MEMBERS

4.1 The Directors and members of the Corporation shall have no private or proprietary 

interest in the Corporation.

4.2 The Board of Directors shall serve as such without compensation, and no part of 

the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of any private member or individual, 

provided, however, that the Board of Directors may allow payment of the expenses necessarily 

incurred by a Director in the performance of his or her duties as a Director.  To the full extent 

permitted by applicable law, the Directors of the Corporation, and each of them, shall be fully 

indemnified by the Corporation for any liability incurred in connection with the duties and 

responsibilities hereunder. 

4.3 A Director shall not be held personally liable to the Corporation for monetary

damages for any breach of fiduciary duty as a Director; provided, however, that nothing herein 

shall be deemed to limit or eliminate the liability of a Director for:

A. Any breach of the Director’s duty of loyalty to the Corporation or its 

members and Directors;

B. Any act or omission not in good faith or which involves intentional 

misconduct or a knowing violation of the law;

C. Any act or omission which evidences assent to or participation in the 

making of any loan by the Corporation to any of its Directors; or

D. Any transaction from which the Director derives an improper personal 

benefit.

DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY; ISSUANCE OF OBLIGATIONS

5.1 The Board of Directors of the Corporation shall not sell, transfer, mortgage, convey,

or otherwise dispose of all or any major part of the property and assets of the Corporation, nor 

shall the Corporation be dissolved, merged, or consolidated with any other corporation or other 

legal entity, except on an affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors of the Corporation 

and an affirmative vote of a majority and resolution of the Town Board.

2016-09-09 Page 114 of 116



4

5.2 The Town, having authorized and directed the creation of the Corporation as an 

instrumentality of the Town, shall at all times during the existence of the Corporation, have a 

beneficial interest in the Corporation and its assets, properties, and moneys. Whenever any bonds, 

notes, or other evidence of indebtedness issued by the Corporation on behalf of the Town are 

satisfied, discharged, and retired, title to all real and personal property financed with the proceeds 

of such bonds, notes, or other evidence of obligation and owned by the Corporation shall be 

forthwith transferred to the Town, or to such other entity as the Town Board may designate.

5.3 The obligations from time to time issued by the Corporation shall never constitute 

the debt or indebtedness of the Town within the meaning of any provision or limitation of the 

Colorado Constitution or the laws or statutes of the State of Colorado, and such obligations shall 

not constitute nor give rise to a charge against the general credit or taxing powers of the Town;

provided, however, that the Town may, from time to time, consistent with the limitations of the 

Colorado Constitution and then laws and statutes of the State of Colorado, enter into one or more 

leases, lease-purchase agreements or other financing arrangements with the Corporation upon the 

approval of the Town Board in accordance with the law.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

6.1 A director of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation for 

monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, officer, agent, or employee except as 

to liability otherwise existing for (i) any breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to the Corporation, 

(ii) acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing 

violation of law, (iii) acts specified in Section 7-128-403 of the Colorado Revised Nonprofit 

Corporation Act, (iv) the amount of any loan made to a director or officer of the Corporation if the 

director assents to or participates in the making of such loan, until the repayment thereof, as 

specified in Section 7-128-501 of the Colorado Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act, or (v) any 

transaction from which the director, officer, agent, or employee directly or indirectly derived an

improper personal benefit. If the Colorado Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act hereafter is 

amended to further eliminate or limit the liability of a director, officer, agent, or employee, then in 

addition to the circumstances in which a director is not personally liable as set forth in the 

preceding sentence, the liability of each director, officer, agent, or employee of the Corporation 

shall be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitted by the amended Colorado Revised 

Nonprofit Corporation Act. 

6.2 Any repeal or modification of the foregoing paragraph shall not adversely affect 

any right or protection of a director of the Corporation existing immediately prior to the time of 

such repeal or modification.

INDEMNIFICATION

7.1 The Corporation shall indemnify any person and his or her estate and personal 

representative(s) against all liability and expense incurred by reason of the person being or having 

been a director or officer of the Corporation to the full extent and in any manner that director may 

be indemnified under the Colorado Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act, as in effect at any time.  

2016-09-09 Page 115 of 116



5

The Corporation shall also indemnify any person who is serving or has served the Corporation as 

director, officer, employee or agent, and that person’s estate and personal representative, to the 

extent and in the manner provided in any bylaw, resolution of the directors, contract or otherwise, 

so long as such provision is legally permissible.

AMENDMENT

8.1 Subject to the requirements of Sections 7-130-101 to 7-130-108 of the Colorado 

Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act, these Articles of Incorporation may be amended as set forth 

in the Bylaws of the Corporation.  

DISSOLUTION 

9.1 So long as any obligations of the Corporation shall be outstanding, the Corporation 

may not be dissolved except upon compliance with the provisions of Article VII of the Articles of 

Incorporation and upon the making of provisions for the full payment of such obligations. In the 

event of the dissolution of the Corporation, no part of its property shall be distributed to any 

member or individual, and any property of the Corporation not required to pay corporate debts and 

corporate expenses shall be distributed only to the Town. 

PRINCIPAL OFFICE

10.1 The address of the initial principal office of the Corporation is 222 Grand Valley 

Way, Parachute, Colorado 81635.

REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT

11.1 The initial registered agent of service of process o the Corporation is:  Stuart 

McArthur, Town Manager, 222 Grand Valley Way, Parachute, Colorado 81635.

FILING

12.1 The name and mailing address of the individual who causes this document to be 

delivered for filing, and to whom the Secretary of State may deliver notice if filing of this document 

is refused, is:  Jeffrey J. Conklin, Esq. Karp Neu Hanlon, P.C., 201 14th Street, Suite 200, P.O. 

Drawer 2030, Glenwood Springs, CO 81602

2016-09-09 Page 116 of 116


	2016-09-15 AGENDA
	(D)(1)2016-08-18 MINUTES)
	(D)(2) EXPENDITURES
	(D)(3) Bottlecap Liquor Lic Renewal
	(D)(4) Rocky MTN C Stores Liquor Lic Renewal
	(F)(2) Town Manager Monthly Report
	(F)(3) Community Development Monthly Report
	(F)(4) Public Works Monthly Update
	(F)(5) Police Department Monthly update
	(G) MG Liquors addition
	(H)TUMBLEWEED LIQUORS-BOTTLECAP XFER
	(I) Rocky mountain Laser Tag
	STAFF REPORT
	I. Description of Application:
	Area Zoning Map

	IV. Applicable Regulations:
	Special Review Uses

	V. Special Review Use Staff Comments:
	Conformance with the Town of Parachute Comprehensive Plan.

	VI. Special Review Use: Comment and Review of Criteria
	15.03.199 Building Exterior Design Standards

	VII. Review Agency Comments
	VIII. Staff Recommendation
	Recommended Board of Trustees Motion:


	(J) Reso No. 2016-21 Rocky MTN Laser Tag
	(K) Reso No. 2016-22 - Cottonwood Park Playground CHF
	(L) Reso No. 2016-23 - Parachute Capital Asset Leasing Corporation



